CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT. LTD.

Regyd/Corporate Office : Apex Plaza, 1st Floor, # 3, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600 034.
Phone : 39181060 / 39181076 Fax : 39181097 e-mail : tulsyannecitd@vsnl.net, tulsyannec @gmail.com
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 16" Annual General Meeting of Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited
will be held on Friday, 30“‘ August, 2019 at 03.00 p.m. at the Registered office of the Company situated at
1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai-600034, Tamil Nadu, to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2019 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors for the FY 2019-20.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 139, 141 and 142(1) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), the retiring auditors, Messrs. C.A. Patel & Patel,
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 005026S), Chennai, be and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting with such remuneration as may be decided by the
Board of Directors in addition to out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them during the
course of the Audit for the financial year ending March 31, 2020.”

By Order of the Board
For Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

_@AA—‘(“—«( M—-L’o,

Place: Chennai Sanjay Agarwalla
Date: 25" May, 2019 Director
(DIN 00632864)

Works : Survey No.77, Thandalacherry Road, Next to TCP Ltd, New Gummidpoondi - 601 201.
Tel. : 27921541 / 42 Fax : 27921543
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NOTES:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF, AND THAT SUCH A PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights.
A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any
other person or shareholder.

The Proxy form duly filled in should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. All alterations/corrections
made in the form of Proxy should be initialed by the Member.

As per Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Members intending to send their
representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send the Company a certified copy of
the board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at
the Meeting.

As per Secretarial Standards-2 (SS-2), Attendance Slip and a Proxy Form are attached with the
Notice hereunder as an Annexure-1 & 2 respectively.

As per Secretarial Standards-2 (SS-2), Route Map for easy access to location of the venue of
the Meeting is attached herein as an Annexure-3.

Pursuant to Sections 101(1) and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 18 of Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended
from time to time, companies can now send notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting to
their Members, Auditors and Directors [ documents including the Annual Report to their
Members through electronic mode, to their e-mail addresses registered with the Company.
Members who would like to receive such notices | documents including the Annual Report in
electronic mode in lieu of physical copy and who have not registered their e-mail addresses so
far or who would like to update their e-mail addresses already registered with the Company,
are requested to registerjupdate their e-mail addresses by sending a request at
investor@tulsyannec.in , mentioning therein their folio number and e-mail address so as to
enable the Company to send the Notice of the General Meeting and Annual Report through
Electronic Mode to their registered e-mail addresses.



Annexure-1
ATTENDANCE SLIP

16™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY TO BE HELD ON FRIDAY, 30" AUGUST, 2019 AT

03.00 P.M.

Reg. Folio No. / Client ID

DPID

No. of Shares

| hereby record my presence at the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at 1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam High
Road, Chennai-600034, at 03.00 p.m. on Friday, 30" August, 2019.

Name of the Member /
Proxy Holder /
Representative

Address of the Member /
Proxy Holder |
Representative

Signature of the Member /
Proxy Holder /
Representative

Notes:

1. Only Member/ Proxy holder [ Representative can attend the Meeting.
2. Please complete the Folio No./DP ID No./Client ID No. and name of the Member/Proxy holder/
Representative and sign this Attendance Slip and hand it over, duly signed, at the entrance of the

Meeting Hall.

3. A Member/Proxy holder/Representative attending the meeting should bring copy of the Notice

for reference at the meeting.



Annexure-2

Form MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Company : Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited
CIN 1 U28999TN2003PTC051803
Registered office: : 1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77 Nungambakkam High Road,

Chennai-600034

1/We, being the member(s) holding shares of the above named company, hereby
appoint

1.  Name

Address
E-mail ID
Signature

or failing him
2. Name

Address
E-mail ID
Signature

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 16™ Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 30" August, 2019 at 03.00 p.m. at 1st Floor, Apex
Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai-600034 and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as indicated below:

Resolution | Description Optional
No. For | Against

1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial |




statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 and
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2 Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors for the FY 2019-20.
Signed this .....cesueessnens day Of visessssssorsssrss 2019
Signature of Shareholder: ... Affix
Revenue
Signature of Proxy holder(s): ueerseeesessesssssnnenes Stamp

Note:

1. This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting;

2. It is an optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the 'For' or 'Against' column blank
against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he [ she think
appropriate;

3. Members may note that a person shall not act as a Proxy for more than 50 members and holding
in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total voting share capital of the Company.
However, a single person may act as a Proxy for a member holding more than ten percent of the
total voting share capital of the Company provided that such person shall not act as a Proxy for
any other person.
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CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT. LTD.

Regd/Corporate Office : Apex Plaza, 1st Floor, # 3, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600 034.
Phone : 39181060 /39181076 Fax: 39181097 e-mail : tulsyannecltd@ vsnl.net, tulsyannec @gmail.com

Boards’ Report
To
The Shareholders of Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Board’s Report of your Company together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31™ March, 2019.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended 31.03.2018
(InRs.) (InRs.)
Gross Income 18,87,65,174 31,18,93,603
Gross Expenses 12,71,04,815 36,42,44,538
Profit/Loss for the year 4,03,74,006 (3,79,38,984)
(After tax)
STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the financial year under review, the performance of your company was quite satisfactory as it has earned a
net profit of Rs. 4,03,74,006 as compared to a net loss of Rs.(3,79,38,984) in the preceding financial year. Turnover
of your company was Rs. 18,87,26,874 as compared to Rs. 31,01,88,182 in the preceding financial year. Further, total
expenses incurred by the company during the financial year were comparatively low. Your company has incurred
total expenses of Rs. 12,71,04,815 as compared to Rs. 36,42,44,538 in the preceding financial year.

INDUSTRIES SCENARIO AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK
The vision of the company is to expand its existing business.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There were no changes in the company’s nature of business during the year under review.

SHIFTING OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
The Registered Office of the Company has been shifted from its present address -“61, Sembudoss Street, Chennai-
600001, Tamil Nadu” to the new address - “1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road,
Chennai-600034, Tamil Nadu” w.e.f. 15" March, 2019.

DIVIDEND
Your Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended 31* March, 2019.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 (3) (J) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

No Amount was transferred to Reserves during the financial year ended 31** March, 2019.

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ ASSOCIATE COMPANY
Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company as on the date of this report.

Works : Survey No.77, Thandalacherry Road, Next to TCP Ltd, New Gummidpoondi - 601 201.
Tel. : 27921541 / 42 Fax : 27921543
B - 2y RHBASB2228RHCIN U28999TN2003 PTC 051803

OEEHNE M BD00R




TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
There was no unpaid/unclaimed dividend to be transferred to IEPF Account for the financial year ended 31" March,
2019.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of
the financial year to which these financial statements relates till the date of this report.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Extract of Annual Return for the financial year ended 31 March, 2019 as required under section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, in Form MGT-9
is annexed herewith for your kind perusal and information. (Annexure-1)

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2019, five Board meetings were held in accordance with the provisions of
Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is summarized below. The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 were
adhered to while considering the time gap between two meetings.

SL.No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present
1 31-05-2018 4 4
2 15-06-2018 4 4
3 05-09-2018 4 4
4 20-12-2018 4 4
5 01-03-2019 4 4

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with
respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 31* March 2019, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

c¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31" March 2019 on a going
concern basis; and

e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ITS ADEQUACY
The Company has adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its
business with regard to the purchase of inventories, fixed assets and sale of goods and services.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS AND REPORT THEREON

The Auditors, M/s. M/s. C.A. Patel & Patel, Chartered Accountants, Chennai, retiring at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment for a period of one year from
the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting [AGM] till the conclusion of the next AGM.




QUALIFICATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS IN THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Statutory Auditors of your Company have expressed qualified opinion in the Audit report as detailed hereunder;

1) There are no Dues of Income-tax or Sales tax or Service tax or Goods and Services tax or duty of Customs or duty
of Excise or Value added tax which have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes, except for

the following:

Serial No. Particulars Amount (Rs. in | Forum where the | Relevant Financial
Lakhs) dispute is pending year

1 Penalty and fine for | 8.61 CESTAT, Chennai 2014-15
non maintenance of
proper records
under central Excise-
RG23A

2 Excise duty on | 13.59 CESTAT, Chennai Jan,2009 to
Dolochar March,2012

3 Penalty for non | 13.59 CESTAT, Chennai Jan,2009 to
payment of Excise March,2012
duty on Dolochar

4 Excise duty on | 3.84 CESTAT, Chennai Jan.2013 to May,2013
Dolochar

5 Penalty for non | 0.40 CESTAT, Chennai Jan.2013 to May,2013
payment of Excise
duty on Dolochar

6 Excise duty on | 6.92 CESTAT, Chennai June,2013 to
Dolochar May,2014

7 Penalty for non | 0.70 CESTAT, Chennai June,2013 to
payment of Excise May,2014
duty on Dolochar

8 Excise duty on | 12.15 CESTAT, Chennai June,2014 to
Dolochar May,2015

9 Penalty for non | 1.20 CESTAT, Chennai June,2014 to
payment of Excise May,2015
duty on Dolochar

10 Excise duty on | 15.99 CESTAT, Chennai June,2015 to
Dolochar February,2017

1 Penalty for non | 1.59 CESTAT, Chennai June,2015 to
payment of Excise February,2017
duty on Dolochar

Reply to Auditor’s Qualification:

The dues are still pending. However, the Management is taking the necessary efforts in order to clear the dues at

earliest.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
The details of Loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company during the year under review are in
compliance with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of the same are
given in notes to financial statements which forms part of the annual report.




RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were
in the ordinary course of business.The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto has been disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 in compliance with the
provisions of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. (Annexure-2)

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO
Particulars as per the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended on 31* March, 2019-

A. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities
undertaken by the company during the year under review.

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo
There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk threatening the Company’s

existence are very minimal.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year, there was no change in the constitution of the Board of Directors of your Company.

The Company has appointed Mrs. Parvati Soni as the Company Secretary (KMP) w.e.f. 01" March, 2019. She is also
acting as the Company Secretary in the Holding Company i.e. Tulsyan NEC Limited.

DEPOSITS
During the year, the company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL
The paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2019 was Rs.6,48,92,000.

a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b. SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

¢. BONUS SHARES
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

d. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees.



SIGNIFICANT /| MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
No such significant and material orders have been passed by any regulators | courts | tribunals against the Company
which will impact the going concern status and Company's operation in future.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE
Regarding the Sexual Harassment of Women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, the
Company has constituted the Internal Complaints Committee. No complaints were received or disposed off during

the year under the above Act.

GENERAL
The Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India (ICSI).

Further, as per the requirement under the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2018, a disclosure regarding
maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to express their grateful appreciation to the continued co-operation received from the Banks,
Government Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Shareholders during the year under review. Your Directors also
wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed service of the Executives, staff and
Workers of the Company.

By Order of the Board
For Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

Place: Chennai >4 M1 Ll i
Date: 25" May, 2019 anjay Tulsyan Sanjay Agarwalla
- Director Director

(DIN: 00632802) (DIN: 00632864)



CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT. LTD.

Regd/ Corporate Office : Apex Plaza, 1st Floor, # 3, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600 034.
Phone : 39181060 /39181076 Fax: 39181097 e-mail : tulsyannecltd@vsnl.net, tulsyannec @gmail.com

Annexure-1

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2019
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration)

Rules, 2014
I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
1. | CIN U28999TN2003PTCo51803
2. | Registration Date 21/10/2003
3. | Name of the Company Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited
4. | Category/Sub-category of the Private Company Limited by Shares
Company Non-govt Company
5. | Address of the Registered st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77 Nungambakkam High Road,
office & contact details Chennai-600034

Phone: 044-61991060; Fax: 044-61991066
Email: investor@tulsyannec.in

6. | Whether listed company No

7. | Name, Address & contact NIL

details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total
turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sl. No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the company
products [ services Product/service
1 Manufacture of Sponge Iron 2410 100%

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

sl Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding / % of Applicable
No. Subsidiary / shares section
Associate held
1 [Tulsyan NEC Limited L28920TN1947PLC007437 Holding Company 100 2(46)
1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77
Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai-600034

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

Works : Survey No.77, Thandalacherry Road, Next to TCP Ltd, New Gummidpoondi - 601 201.
Tel. : 27921541 / 42 Fax : 27921543
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year [As on 01-April-2018]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-March-2019]

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Change
during
the
year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF

10

10

10

b) Central Govt

¢) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp.

6489190

6489190

6489190

e) Banks [ FI

) Any other

Total shareholding
of Promoter (A)

6489200

6489200

6489200

6489200

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks [ I

) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1lakh

<) Others (specify)




Non Resident - - - - > = n :
Indians
Overseas - - = 2 = g G ¥
Corporate Bodies
Foreign Nationals i ¥ o {1 x i i :
Clearing Members 2 § i . £ i -
Trusts - = = = = = = -
Foreign Bodies - D - = & - " . - =
R
Sub-total (B)(2):- . § il g 2 g °
o 0 o| o 0 ¢} 0 0
Total Public
Shareholding
@):=(B)1)+ (B)2)
C. Shares held by - & - = - . = 3
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 6489200 6489200 100 0 6489200 6489200 100 NIL
(A+B+C)
B) Shareholding of Promoters
sl Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year % change
No. Name year in
sharehol
No. of % of total | %of Shares | No.of % of total | %of Shares ding
Shares Shares of | Pledged/ Shares Shares of | Pledged/ during
the encumbere the encumbered | ¢he year
company | d to total company | to total
shares shares
1 Tulsyan NEC 6489190 100 NIL 6489190 100 NIL NIL
Limited
2 Sanjay Tulsyan 10 0 NIL 10 0 NIL NIL
(holding on
behalf of
Tulsyan NEC
Limited)
() Change in Promoters’ Shareholding: Nil
SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during
| beginning of the year the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 6489200 100 6489200 100
Date wise Increase | Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the NIL NIL NIL
reasons for increase | decrease (e.g. allotment NIL
Jtransfer | bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 6489200 100 6489200 100

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Nil




SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders beginning during the
of the year year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the | shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 o
Date wise Increase | Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the NIL NIL NIL NIL
reasons for increase [decrease (e.g. allotment [
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 0 0 0 o]
£) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN | Shareholding of each Directors and each Key Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Managerial Personnel beginning during the
of the year year
No. of % of total No. of shares | % of total
shares shares of the shares of the
company company
1 Sanjay Tulsyan (holding on behalf of Tulsyan NEC
Limited)
At the beginning of the year 10 0 10 o
Date wise Increase | Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the NIL NIL NIL NIL
reasons for increase [decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer | bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 10 4] 10 o
V. INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (Rs.In
lakhs)
Secured Loans Total
excluding deposits Unsecured Loans | Deposits Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
19,64.59,000 2,54,16,618 - 22,18,75,618
i) Principal Amount
21,42,645 3 = 21,42,645
i) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
19,86,01,645 2,54,16,618 - 22,40,18,263
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year
* Addition
(21,42,645) # - (21,42,645)
* Reduction
(21,42,645) = - (21,42,645)
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
19,64,59,000 2,54,16,618 - 22,18,75,618
i) Principal Amount
20,35,513 = * 20,35,513
ii) Interest due but not paid
iil) Interest accrued but not due
19,84,94,513 2,54,16,618 22,39,11,131
Total (i+ii+iii)




V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

i N &

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

|

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total (A)

NIL

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other Directors - NIL

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors Total Amount

s L

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee

meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

NIL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD | Manager [ WTD — NIL

SN

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO 1 cs ] CFO Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(<) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

W |

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

NIL

others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total




Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty / Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act Description Punishment/ [RD / NCLT/ if any (give Details)
Compounding fees COURT]
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment
Compounding
By Order of the Board
For Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited
Place: Chennai LA ~ar AL
Date: 25 May, 2019 njay Tulsyan Sanjay Agarwalla
Director Director

(DIN: 00632802)

(DIN: 00632864)




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT. LTD.

Annexure-2
R*‘-‘gd/Corporate Office : Apex Plaza, 1st Floor, # 3, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600 034.
Phone : 39181060 /39181076 Fax : 39181097 e-mail : tulsyannecltd@vsnl.net, tulsyannec @gmail.com

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NIL

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: NIL

(c) Duration of the contracts [ arrangements/transactions: NIL

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NIL

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NIL

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: NIL

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis given hereunder;

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Tulsyan NEC Limited, Holding Company

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Purchase / Sale of Raw materials and providing of job
work relating to manufacturing activity

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: From 08-08-2018 to conclusion of the 74" AGM
of Tulsyan NEC Limited

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Contract
value not exceeding Rs. 250 Crores in aggregate

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 15.06.2018

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

By Order of the Board
For Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

Place: Chennai /Q’/ _C‘D—A—-i l.,} M{_,l_{
Date: 25" May, 2019 '

Sanjay Tulsyan Sanjay Agarwalla
Director Director
(DIN: 00632802) (DIN: 00632864)

Works : Survey No.77, Thandalacherry Road, Next to TCP Ltd, New Gummidpoondi - 601 201, .
Tel. : 27921541 / 42 Fax : 27921543

Al X ROQO0K - BRRec@5R826%% CIN U28999TN2003 PTC 051803




. C.A. PATEL & PATEL
%. Chartered Accountanis
442 {Old No.602), Anna Salai,
"A" Wing 4th Floor, Flat No.2,

Parsan Manere, Chennai - 600 004.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members
Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accormpanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of
Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited {“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone finandal statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act’) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") specified under Section 133
of the Act, of the state of affairs (finandal position) of the Company as at 31 March
2019, and its profit (financial performance incuding other comprehensive income),
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance




with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
{'ICAI'} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters,

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone finandal statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our epinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

S. "Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, key audit matters are not applicable to
the company as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of ‘Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
standalone financial statements

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect tc the preparation of these standalone financial



statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs {financial position),
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS spedfied under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting poelicies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
“Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters

related to geing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Anditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements
10. Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

11

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and mainfain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:




12.

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those 1isks, and obtain andit evidence that is sufficient and
approprate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating cffectivencss of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the ss of
accounting estimates and retated disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governarice regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.




13.

14.

16.

17.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
cumplied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relaticnships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought toc bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in cur report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the ‘Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give
in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

Further to our comments il‘! Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3} of the Act,
we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢} The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e} on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualitied as




on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act;

f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the Company as on 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date and our report as per Annexure B expressed an unmodified opinion;

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanaiions given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or Ind AS, for material foresezable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2019

for C.A Patel&Patel
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Chennai g Bhavkesh N Pafel.
Date : 25 May, 2019 : Partner
Membership No: 026669




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report On Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the members of Caplin Point Laboratories
Lirnited of even date:

i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets, by
which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In
our opinion, this periedicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion
of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the name of
the Company. In respect of immovable properties been taken on lease and disclosed as
property, plant and equipment in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the lease
agreements are in the name of the Company.

ii} The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In cur
opinion, the frequency of such vertfication is reasonable. The Company has maintained
proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stock and the book records were not material.

iliy The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{jii} (a), (b) and (c) of
the QOrder arc not applicable to the Company.

iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

v} The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act,




any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder.
Accordingly, paragraph 3{v} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi}  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
requirement for maintenance of cost records pursuant to the companies (Cost
Records and Audit ) Rules ,2014 specified by the Central Government of India under
Section 148 of the Companies Act,2013 are not applicable to the company for the year
under audit.

vii} a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropriate
authorities like Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax,
Service tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value added tax,
‘Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable , with the appropriate authorities.
Further no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year
end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no dues of Income-tax or Sales tax or Service tax or Goods and Services tax
or duty of Customs or duty of Excise or Value added tax which have not been deposited
by the Company on account of disputes, except for the following:

Serial No. Particulars Amount { | Forum where | Relevant
Rs.in Lakhs) the dispute is | Financial year
. pending
1 Penalty and | 861 {ESTAT, 2014-15
' fine for non Chennai
maintenance
of proper

records under
central Excise-

. RG23A
2 Excise duty on | 13.59 CESTAT, Jan,2009  to
Dolochar Chennai March,2012
3 Penalty for | 13.59 CESTAT, Jan,2009 to
' non  payment Chennai March,2012
of Excise duty
on Dolochar
4 Excise duty on | 3.84 CESTAT, Jan2012 to

Dolochar Chennai May,2013




5 Penalty for | 0.40 CESTAT, Jan.213 to
non payment Chennai May,2013

of Excise duty
on Dalochar

6 Excise duty on | 6.92 CESTAT, June, 2013 to
Dolochar Chennai May,2014

7 Penalty for | 0.70 CESTAT, June, 2013  to
non  paymernt Chennai May,2014
of Excise duty
on Dolochar

8 Excise duty on | 12.15 CESTAT, June,2014  to

. Dolochar Chennai May, 2015

9 Penalty for | 1.20 CESTAT, June,2014  to
non  payment Chennai May, 2015

of Excse duty
on Dolochar

10 Excise duty on | 15.99 CESTAT, June, 2015 to
Dolochar Chennai February,2017

11 Penalty,  for | 1.59 CESTAT, June, 2015
non payment Chennai February,2017

of Excise duty
on Dolochar

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not defaulted in the repayment of leans and borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government and dues to debenture holders.

ix} Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer {including debt instrnments} and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clanse 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

x} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.




xi} The Company is a private limited company and hence provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable.

xii} The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause 3ixit) is
not applicable.

xiii} All the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv)The Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

for C.A.Patelé&Patel
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No:

Place : Chennai Bhavesh N Patel
DPate: 25% May, 2019 Fartner
Membership No: 026669




Annexure B To The Independent Auditor's Report of even date To The Members of
Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited, on The standalone financial statements
for The year ended 31 March 2019

Annexure B
Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal financial Controls under Clause (i} of sub-
sectton 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the "Act”)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Chitrakoot
Steel and Power Private Limited (the “Company”} as at and for the year ended 31
March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting {{[FCoFR} of the Company as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finandal
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
the Company’s business,, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our respomsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial-controls over financial reporting and the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirementis and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.




4. Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporiing included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financiat
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

. Meaning of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

6. A Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal
financial contrals over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
{2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the Company; and {3) provide rcasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acguisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent lmitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, incduding the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due fo error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
contrels over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate




because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on
the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intemnal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAL

for M{s C. A Patel&Patel
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm isbeation No:

Bhavesh Npatel
Partner
Membership No: 026669
- Place : Chennai .
Date : 25% May, 2019




Name of the Company

Balance Sheet as at + March 31, 2015

CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PRIVATE LIMITED

{In Rupoes)
Particulars Tox® | AsAtMar31,2019 | AsAtMar 31, 2018
II. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Praperty, plant and equiprment 3 73,310,570 76,724,953
{b} Intangible Assets 4 42,606 53,072
{c) Financlal assets
Investments 5 2,500 2,500
() Deferred tax assets (net) ) 103,583,630 108,124,244
{d) Other MNon Current assets 7 5,253,177 5,183,390
182,187,883 190,108,164
Current assets
(a) Inventorles 3 45,608,986 48,920,528
(b} Financial assets
{f) Trade Receivablas q 7,087,605 14,627,406
{ii} Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 2984322 2,041,005
(iify Short Term Loans and Advances 11 16,609 408 16,070,637
69,604,421 81,659,636
TOTAL 251,802,304 271,767,800
IL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 12 64,852,000 G4, 892,000
{b} Other Equity 13 (290,419,207} 330,793,213}
(245,527,207} {265,901,213}
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 25,416,618 25,461 508
25,416,618 25,461,508
Current Liabilities
{a} Financlal Liabilities
(1} Borrowings 15 198,494,513 198,601,645
(13 Trade payables 16 152,942,808 60,220,407
(b} Othet Current Liahilitles 17 98,365,805 251,556,289
{c} Short Term Provisions 18 2,108,767 1,829,164
451,912,893 512,207,505
Motes on Finandial Statements ltodl
251,802,304 271,767,200

As par gur Report of even date-

For C A Patel & Patel
Charte untants

R

BHAVESH N PATEL
Partner
M Mo, 026669

Place | Chennai
Date ; 25th May, 2019

i, h«wvu\.&l." .
Salj;}p garwalla Sanjay Tulsyan

Director
Dire : QR6I2864

b

2

Parvati Soni
Company Secretary

Director
Din : 006832802




Name af the Cempary
Siatement of Prafit and Loss far the Year ended : MARCH 31, 2019

CHITRAKCOT STEEL AND POWER PRIVATE LIMITED

. Hote For the year endad For the year ended
I
Particulars Na, March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
I |Revenue From Operaticns 19 188, 726,874 310,188,182
II |Other income 20 34,300 1,705,421
TIT |TQTAL REVENUE [I+II) 188,765,174 311,893,603
IV | Expenzes
Materials Consumed 21 1,280 305,839,832
Changes In Irventory 2 3,580,721 {9,625 631)
Purchase of Stocksin-trade 35222678
Employees Beneflts 23 3,639,161 3418154
Finance Charges 2] 26,327,537 25,006,082
Depreclation & Amertlzation expanses I&4 4,819,311 4,950,523
Other Expenses 25 53,513,807 26,615,277
¥ | Total Expences 12¥,104,815 364,244,538
VL | Profic befare Tax { ¥-¥1 ) 61,660,359 {52,350,935)
VII | Tax expense
{1 Clrrent Tax 16,745,735 -
(23 MAT Creelit Ertitlement - -
{3} Deferred Tax 4,590,618 (14,411,951}
VI |Profit for the Year 413,374,036 {37.938,984)
IX |Other Comprebensive income
{1} Ttems that will not be redassified to profit or less -
[2} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclacsified to profit or foss -
{3] Wems that will be reclassified ko profle or lass ' -
{4) Income tax refabing to items that well be reclassified by profit o lozs -
X |Total comprehensive income for the period 40,374,006 {37,938,984)
X [Earning per Equity Share 26
- Basic & Diluted 5.22 {5.85)
= Fage value per Shang 10, 10,00
As par aur Repodt of even date
For C A Fatel & Patel £, ' MW
Chartered focountants SaLr;kaTv_;ga alia anjay Tulsyan
Fl Direcher Director
Din @ 0632864 Din : 00632302

BH.
Partner
M Ho. 26669

H N PATEL
s

Flaga @ Chenmai
Date : 25th May, 2019

\3

Paryati Soni
Compary Secretary




CHITRAKQOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD

CASH FLOW

R ENDED 31.03.19

For tha year

For the year

Partner
M Mo, 026669

BHAVESH N PAT

Py

Lompany Secretary

Particulars ended ended
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
{Rs.}
A. |CASH FRDM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Prefit Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 61,660,359 {52,350,935)
ADJUSTED FOR:
Crepreclation 4,819,311 4,950,823
Interest and Other Flnance Charges 26,327,537 25,046,082
Tnterest / Dividend f Rent Income [38,298) {1,380,360)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 92,766,904 (23,734,389)
ADJUSTED FOR:
Trade Receivables 7,001,000 17,553,993
Trade Payatles {59,540,832) (6,290,232)
Inventories 3,311,542 38,174,547
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 43,540,709 25,703,913
Incorme tax pald 16,745,735
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES {4) 26,794 974 25,703,913
B, |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchage Of Fixed Assets {1,284,861) (13,469}
Interest / Dividend / Rent Income 38,298 1,380,360
{Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances (64,7870 {448,161
Sale of Fixed Assets - -
NET CASH FROM {(USED IN} INVESTING ACTIVITIES {8) {1,411,350) 918,730
C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds Froem Borrowings {Net) (798,669} (1,775,435)
Interest and Other Finance Charges (26,327.537) {25,046,082)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C} {2?,1255207} (26,821,519}
MET INCREASEf(DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {A+B+C) (1,742,583} {198,875)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,041,005 2,239,880
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 208,422 2,041,005
INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,742,583) (198,875}
{ Previous figures have been regrouped whereever necessary to conform to the
current year's prasentation)
For C A Patel & Patel On behalf of the Board
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T T
NOTES FORMING PART QF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{In Rupass}
As At March 31, As At March 31,
Particutars 2019 2ms
2 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS.
Long term, Unduoted, at gost
Shamrao Vittal Co-operative Bank 2,500 2,500
25 (25} Equity Shares of Rs, 100
2,500 2,500
£ DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred Tax Liability
- O Account of Depreclation 4,540,618 {3,752,452)
Deferred Tax Asset
- On Account of Disallowances and Losses camied forward 108,124,248 111,878,701
under Income Tax Act
103,583,630 108,124,249
7 : OTHER NON CLIRREMT ASSETS
Deposit with Government Autharlties 1,454,525 1,389,738
MAT credit entitlement 3,803,652 3,802,652
Advance for capital Assels - -
5,258 177 5,193,390
{As valued and certified by the Management} ;
Raw Materials
Iron Qre - -
Coal . 12,256 12,250
Dolormite 08,053 08,952
Stock of Stores & Spares 6,373,350 £,240,726
Einlshed Goods
Sponge Iron Lumips 33,851,E00 42,422, 564
Dalochar - Saap - .
Iron Cre Fines - Scrap 135,987 146,035
Steck-in-trada 136,549 -
45,608,586 48,920,528




ITRAKGOT EL AND POWE|
NAN MEN
{Tn Rupess)
As At March 31, As At March 31,
Partlculars 2019 2018
21 TRADE RECEIVAELES
{Unsecured]
- Debts cutstanding for more than six months
Considerad Good 11,055,735 13,002,910
Considerad Doubkful 1,704,996 1,704,596
- Other debts
Considered Good - -
12,760,731 14,797,906
Less: Provisian for Doubtful Dehts 5,673,126 170,500
7,087,605 14,627,406
10 ; CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash In hand 104,767 527,685
Balances with schedufed hanks
- in Current Accounts 2,180 79,783
ii} Other Bank Balantes
= In Deposit Accounts 191,475 1,433,537
208,422 2,041,005
11 ; SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
{recoveralle in cash of In kind
or for value to be recelved)
-Unsecured considerad good:
Daposits 230,000 230,000
Advance for supplies and expenses 6,025,144 4,151,418
Prepaid expenses 483439 328,298
Balance with Government Authorities 2,762,269 5,748,800
Advance Tax (net of Provisions) 7,005,553 3,601,782
Staff Advance 9,000 10,000
i) Advance Recoverable In Cash o in Klnd 2,226,878 2,226,878
18,836,286 18,207,575
Less: Provigion for Dobubtful Advances 2226878 2,226,878
16,609,408 16,070,657




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PY'T LTD

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINAHCIAL STATEMENTS
{In Rupeei
) As At March 31, As At March 31,
Particulars 2019 2008
17 : 58
Authorised Share Capital
70,00,000 (70,00,0000 Equity Shares of Rs. 104- each 70,000,000 70,004,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
64,859,200 (54,89,200} Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each e 552,000 4,802,000
64,892,000 64,892 000

(a) ANl the Equity Shares carry equal rights and obligations Including for Dividend and with respect ta Vating rights.

b) Details of Shareh i h

"N, of Shares - % held Mo, of Shares - % held

Name of Share hoh
64,895,200 - 100% 6489200 - 100%

Tulaysan NEC Ltd
13 : OTHER EQUETY
Surplus in Statemant of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (330,723,213 (292,854,230)
Add: Prafit for the Year aftar tax 40,374,006 {37,538,534)
Less: Adjustment relating to Fixed Assets . -
Balance as at the end of the year (290,419,207} (330,793,213}
14 :LONG TERM CORROWINGS
Secorad Leans N
From Banks
HLFC Car Loan . - 44,990
Unsecured Loans
From Related Parties 20,038,023 20,035,025
From Others 5,377,593 5,377,593
25416,618 25,461,508
A. Mature of Secarity;

Term Laan : Secured by First charge on land situatad in New Gummudipundi Village, Thirvallur Dist, factary building with

other constructions there on and Hypothecation of PR M situated therein, Personal guarantee of the promoters &

the corporate guarantee of M/s Tulsyan NEC Lid,

B. Terms of Eepavmant:
At the end of the year, tarm |oan outstanding of R%. 1,214 lakhs has been converted into over draft by the bankers. Hence the entire
outstanding has bee treated as Cumrent Corgonent under 'Other Currant Liabilities',




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PYT LTD

A Nature of LA

16 ; TRADE PAYAELES

HNOTES FORMING PART OF FENANCIAL STATEMENTS
{In Rupaes)
N As At March 31, As At March 31,
Particelars 2019 2018
B. Mon Current and Current Compunents of Leng Term Borrgwings:
Hon Current Companents
Termn Loans from Banks - .
Vehicle Loans fram Banks - 44, B50
Loans from Related Partles 20,039,025 20,039,025
Loans fram Okhers 5,377,593 5,377,593
A 25416,618 25,461,508
Qurrent Components
Term Loans from Banks - 691,212
Wehicle Luan from Banks 44,565 .
Loans from Related Parties - -
B 44,565 691,212
Total A+B 25,451,183 26,153,720
M BORR:
Secured Werking Capital Loans from Banks:
Shamra Vital Co-uperative Bank 198,454,513 198,601,645
198,494,513 193,601,645

Secured sgalnst hypothecation of paid Stocks and book debis not exceeding 9¢ Days

and linkage on the factory land & building.

Sundry Creditors :

= For Supplies and Services 147 205,821 54,281,246

- For Expenses and Cthers 5,736,947 5,939,161

152,942 808 £0,220,407

17 : OTHER CURREMT LIABILITIES

Currant Component of Long Term Bormowings 44,565 631,212

Dwrties & Taxes Payable 5.079,439 12,171,955

interest Accruad and Dye on Term Loans . -

Advances from Custormners 76,495,065 238,693,122

Provislon for Current Tax 16,745,735

98,365,805 251,556,289

13 ; SHORT TERM PROVISIQNS

Provision for Expenses 2,109,767 1,824,164

2,109,767 1,829,164




CHITRAKGOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 201%

March 31, 2018

19 : REVENUE FROM QPERATIONS

Gross Sales

Finished Products

Raw Matgrials

Corversion Charges Received
Others

Less: Excise Duty
Goods and Service Tax

20 : OTHER EINCOME
Irkzrest Tncome (TDS Rs.15,908 /- (FY: 13,2540
Insurance Claims
Dividend
Discount Received
Pates & Rebates
Miscellanenus Income

21 : MATERIALS CONSUMEDR
Opening Stack
Add: Purchases

Less : Closing Stock

22 VENTORY
Einished Goods
Qpening Stock
Cloging Stock
Variance in Excise Duty on Closing Stock of Finished Goods

Purchase of Stock-in-trade

23 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries, Wages & Allowances
Bonus

Company's contribution PF & EST
Seaff Welfare

24 : FINANCE CHARGES
Bark Charges
Tntgrest on Bank Loans
Interast ethers

- 257,036,556
97,120 5,055,034
154,605,105 51,938,540
34,024,649 6,267,384
188,726,874 120,297,853
- 10,109,672
188,726,674 214,188,182
37,995 159,060
- 1,221,000
300 300
- 325,019
2 42
38,300 1,705,421
111,208 41,877,932
1,280 262,073,103
112,489 303,951,035
111,209 111,203
1,280 302,839,832
42,568,599 36,994,707
38,987,877 42,568,509
- (4,051,740}
3,580,721 (9,625,631)
35,222,978 -
3,397,528 3,199,865
40,780 34,041
104,917 101,650
95,956 82,508
3,639,181 3,418,154
25,346,738 24,787,110
i 23,482) 22,056
[ 35,323,758 74,809,166




SHITRAKOOT SYEEL AND POWER PVT LT[
NOTES FORMING PART QF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Farticulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

23 i OTHER EXPENSES

A. Factory overheads
AMC Charges
Electricity Charges
Stores & Spares Consumead
Freight Inward - Others
Weighment Charges
Labour Charges
Local Conveyance
Postage & Courier
Printing & Stationery
Repairs & Mafntenance:
Plant & Machinery
Electrical
Building
Others
Sequrity Charges
Telephone Charges
Testing Charges
Water Charges
Office Maintenance
Wehicle Maintenance

Sub total (A)

B. Administration & Selling expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Proviston of Bad and Daoubitful Debt
Taxes Relating to earlier years
Audit Remuneratlon:

For Statutory Audit

For Tax Audit & Others
Internal Audit Fees
Travalling & Conveyance
Ponja Expenses
Computers Mainkenance
Legal & Professional Charges
Books and perindicals
Donations
Barik Charges
Ingyrance

Sub total (B)

Tatal {A+B)
26 : EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Prefit After Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders ()
Weighted Average Mo, of Equity Shares Cutstanding

as at the end of the year -

Basic ard Diluted Earnings per Share (')

125217 142,100
13,345,117 12,254,214
101,932,840 9,404,623

1,320 20,060
14,819,862 7,442,940
44,353 37,640
3477 5,395
49,103 40,704
744,122 391,954
115,212 110,483
28,800 71,040
163,640 188,529
1,453,800 1,885,581
45,218 7B,564
157,780 191,278

14,400
120,473 125,559
171,092 55,608
42,348,855 32,426,274
4,008,235 2,718,769

5,502,626

322,309 -
75,000 75,000
93,500 112,500
204,000 204,000
242,609 223723
13,750 11,697
5,219 3,900
106,000 139,235
11,800 1,300
422,000 420,000
1,004,281 236,916
151,904 278,380
12,169,232 4,425,920
54,518,087 36,852,194
401,374,006 (37,938,984

6,469,200

/' . 6,489,200

Wi 6.22

(5.85)




CHITRAKQOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31.03.2019

3.

Note - 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION:

The Cornpany was incorporated on October 21, 2003, and is in the business of Manufacturing of
Sponge fron.

Note - 2: SIGNIFTCANT A H

Statement of compllance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian
Accounting stamwards {Ind A7, induding the rules natified under the relevant provisions of the
Companies Ack, 2013,

Up to the yoar ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in
acrardance with the requirements of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India {previous
GAAP), which Includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006, :

These are the Cormpany's first Ind AS financigl statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is
Aprit 1, 2016,

The financial statements of the Company have heen prepared an the historical cost basis at the
end of each reporting period. |

Historical cast is generally based on the falr value of the ¢onsideration given in exchange for
gonds and services,

The financhal statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indlan
Accounting standards (‘Ind AS7, including the rules notified under the relavant provisions of the
Companias Adt, 2013,

Upto the year ended March 31, 2017, the Comnpany has prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the requirement of Indian General Acceptad Accounting Policies, which includes
Standards notified under the Companies {Accounting Standards} Rules, 2006 and congidered as
"Previous GABP", ’

These financlat statements are the Company ' s first Ind AS standalone financlal statements.

Company’s financlal statements are presented in Indian Rupees '), which is also its functional
currendcy.

Y




<. Revenue Recogpition
Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow ta the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measurad.

Sales are accounted net of trade discount and include Sales Tax Excise Duties and Goods and
Service Tax. Revenue from Direct sales is accounted for on the basis of dispatches. In respect of
Cargignment sales, revenue is recognized after the confirmation of sale from the Conslgnment

Agent,
Conversion Charges

Convarsion charges are recognized on monthly basis i.e 3500/~ metdc tonne on despatch of
goods to the pringipal.

Intgrest
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking Into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

d. Forei ctions

The financial statements of the Compary are presented in Indian Rupses (INR), which is the
Company's fundtional currency, In preparing the financial statements of the Company,
transactions in currencies other than the Cornpary’s functional cuerency (Toreign currencles) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in forgigh currencies are retranstated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Mon-monstary ibems carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Mon-manetary iterns that are measured in tenms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

e. Borrowing Costs
Barrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ar production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time a5 the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale,

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowlngs pending their
expenditure on gualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are Ingurred,

/




f.

Emploveq Benefits

Provident Fund:

The Company contributes to the Statutory Provident fund in accordance with the Emgloyees’
Prowident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions ACt, 1952, The plan is a defined contributions plan
and the contribution paid or payable |s recognized as an expense in the period In which the
employee renders service,

Gratuity:

In respect of 'Gratuily, no provision has been made In the atenunts for the actuarial liability for
future payment of Gratuity. Gratuity payments are charged to Profit and Loss account in the wear
in which payrents are made.

Taxes on Income
Income tax expense represents the surn of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax:

The tax cureently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expenss
that are taxabie or deductible in gther years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
company's Provislon for current tax is made based on the llabllity coimputed in accordance with
the relevant tax rates and tax laws. Current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted by the end of the reporting period,

Deferred tax:

Defarrad tax is recognized on temporary diffcrences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabfitles i the finandal satements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
tavable profit. Deferred tax Mahilltles are gemerally recognized for alb taxable temporary
ehffergnces. Deferad tax gssets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probeble that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can he utilized, Such deferred tax assets and liabilites are not
racagnized i the tempeorary differance arises from the Initial racognition {ather than in a business
cambination] of assets and lapilities in a transaction that affects relther the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recogrized W the temporary
differance atiges from the initial recognition of goodwill,

The carrying amourt: of deferved tax assets is reviewsd at the end of each reporting period and
reduced ta the extent that it is na longer probable that sufficiant taxakle profits will be available
to allavs all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tzwes are measured At the tax rabes that are expacted to apply in the penod in which
the liability is settlad or the asset is realized, based un the tax rates and the tax laws enacted ar
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets raflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
axpects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover oc settie the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities,




Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax ace also reoogmzed in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively, ;

Progerty, plant and equipment:

Land and buildings held forsuse in the supply or production of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance shest at cost less accumutated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is rat depreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and accumulated
impairment losses,

PPE in the course of construction far supply, production or administrative purposes are carried at
oost, dess any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for gualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the  Company’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classifled to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use, Depredation of these assets, on the same basis as ather
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Category of Asset Estimated
Factory Buildings 30 Years
Bore well & Road 10 Years
Plant & equipment 8 Years
| Elettricai & Work Equipments 10 Years
[ Weigh Bridge ) 15 Years
[ Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Mopeds B 8 Years
Mator vehicles/other assets 10 Years
Office equipmant 5 Years
Lab Equipments 10 Years

Deprediation is recoonized s as to write off the cost of assets (other than frechald land and
properties under construction] Jess their resldual values over their useful lives, using the sraight-
ling method, The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting penod with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis, -

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognized upon disposal or when ne Future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any galn or loss
atising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in profit or loss,

y




Intangible assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are camied at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated fmpairment losses. Amortization is recognized on & straight-line basts quer their
ectimated useful lves. The estimated useful Ife and amartisation methad are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are caried at cost less
aecumulated impairment losses.

Categery of Assat Estimated

: -
Software and websits S Years
development costs

An Intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, er when no future economic benefits are
axpected from use or disposal. Gains o losses arising from derscognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal procdeeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recagnized in profit or loss when the asset is dersoognized,

Impalrment of tanglbte and intanglble assets: ’ !

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intamgible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairmeht loss. IF any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in arder to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of am Individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit ko which the asset belorgs, When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also aliocated to
irdividual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intanglble assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at 3east annually, and whanever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Rercaverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal amd walue in use. In
asgessing walue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their presant value
using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
gl the Fisks specific to the asset for which the estimgtes of future cash flows have not been
arjustad.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-genarating unit) is reducad 1o ks
recoverable amount, An impairment loss |s recognized immediately in profit or loss,

When an Impalrment Inss subsequently reversas, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-
generating unit) is Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does nob exezed the carrying amount that would have heen
determined had no impaiment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unity in
oriar years. A reversat of an impairment loss is recognized immediakely in profit or foss.




.

Inventories;

Inventories are carried &t the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on a first-in-first-out basis. Cost ncludes the purchase price, non-refundable taxes
and delivery handling cost. Met realizable value represents the estimated sefling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of complation and costs necassary to make the sale.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {fegal or constructive) as &
result of 3 past event, it is probable that the Company will b required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the and of the reporting pericd, taking into account the risks and
uncertalrties surrounding the obligation. When a provislon is measured using the cash flows
astimated to setfle the present obligation, its carrying arnount is the present valug of those cash
flows,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are experted to be
recovered from g third party, & receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursermnent will be received and the armount of the receivable tan ba measured reliably.

nts:
Finaricial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a paity to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial §abilities are imitially measured at fair value, Transacton costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {cther
than financial assets ard financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair vatue of the financial assets or financial lizbilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition, Transaction costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition of financial assets or Araral
liabilitles at Fair value through orofit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method:

The effective interest metod is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financlal
instrument and of allocating interest ower the relevant period. The effective intarest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts/payments {Including il fees and points
paid or received that form an-integial part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
ather premiums or discounts) through the expectad |ife of the instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter perlad, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

financial -

A financial asset is any asset that is:
(&) cash; .
(b} an equity instrument of ancther entity,;
(€} a contractual right:
(i} to recelve cash or another financial asset from another entlby; o
(ii} to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another antity under conditions

that are potentially favorable to the Company; or




(d} a contract that will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments and is:
(i} a non-derivative for which the Company is or may be obliged to receive a variable
rumber of the entity’s own equity instruments; or
{ii] & derivathve that will or may be settied other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or ancther flnanctal asset for a flxed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments,
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
All recognized flnanclal assets are subsequently measured in thelr entirety at either amortized
cost or fair value, depending on the dassification of the financial assats.

Massification of financial

Debt
Debt instruments that mesat the following conditions are subsequently measurad at amaortised
cost (except for debt instruments that are de5|gnated as at “fair value through profit or loss
(FYTPLY" on initial recognition}:
the asset is held within a business madel whose oh}ectwe 15 to hold assets In order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give fse on specified dates to cash flows that are
safely payments of principal and Interest on the pninclpal amount outstanding.

Dbt instruments (except for debt instruments that are designated as at FVTPL on initial
recogrition) that mest the following conditions are subsequently measured at "fair value through
other comprehensive incame (FYTOCTY™"
the asset is held within a business medel whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash fows and selling financial assets; and

the eontractual terms of the instrurment give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of princpal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Income is recognized on an effective interest hasls for debt instruments other than those
financlal agsets classified as at FVTPL,

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss for FYTOC debt instruments. For the purposes of
recognising forefign exchange gains and lasses, FVTOCT debt instruments are treated as financial
assets measured at amortised cost, Thus, the exchange differences on the amortized cost ara
recagnized in prafit or |oss and other changes in the faif value of FVTOCT financial assets are
recognized i other comprehensive ingome and accumulated under the heading of "Reserve for
debt insiruments through other comprehensive income’. When the investment is disposed of, the
cumudative gain or hoss previously accumulated [n this reserveis reclassified bo profit or loss.

A debt instrument Wiat meets the amortised cost criteria or the FYTOCT eriterla may be
designated as at FYTPL upen initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces 8 maasurermnent ar recognitlan Inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or
lizbiiities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.




Debt instruments classified as FYTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
perigd, with any gains or losses arising on re-measuUrement recognized in profit or loss. The
Cotnpany has not designated any debt instrument as at FYTPL.

Equity

Investments in eguity instruments are classified as at FYTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
alects on initial recogrition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Equity instrurnents at FYTPL are meastred at fair value &t the end of each reporting period, with
any gains or losses arising on re-measurement regognized in profit or loss, The net gain or loss
recugnized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend earmed on the financlal asset and is included
uner ‘Other income’, Dividend on financial assets at FYTPL is recognized when the Company’s
right to receive the dividends i established and the dividend does not represent a recavery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss modet for recognising impairment loss on financial
assets measurad at amartised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash
or other financial asset not designatad as at PYTPL.

Expacted credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default accurring as the weights, Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and 2l the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls). The Company estimates cash flows by
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) through the expected hfe of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a finandal instrument at an amount equal ta the
lifetime expected credit losses considering the nature of industry and the deferred payment
schemes operatad, ’

Whan making the assessment of whether there has been a sigrificant increase in gredit risk since
inittal recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
experted life of the finaneial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default ocourring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurnng an the finangial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant
increases in credit risk since initia? recogniticn.

Fowr trade receivables or any contractual right to receive Gash or ancther financial assat that result

from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expacted credit losses.




Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected cradit loss allowance for trade
recelvables, the Company has used a practical expediant as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matriz which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are
equally applied to debt instrurents at FVTOLL except that the loss allowance is recognized in
other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying armount In the balance sheet,

Darecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the cofftractual rights to the cash fAows from
i the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rawards of ownership of the asset to anather party. If the Company neither transfers nor retaing
substantially all the risks and rewards of ewnership and cuatinues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognises its retained Interest In the asset and an assodiated diability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a ransferred financial asset, the Company continues to recogrise the financial asset
and alse recognizes a colfateralized bormowing for the proceeds recsived.

On derecognition of a financial asset In Its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accurnulated in equity is
recoghlzed in proflt or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or
loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Qn derecognition of a financial asset other than.in its entirety (e.9. when the Compary retains an
aption to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset batween the part it continues to recognise under continuing
imvalverment, and the part it no longer recognises on the Basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer, The difference batween the camying amount allacated to the
part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration recelverd for the part no longer
racognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized in other
comprehansive [nfome |5 recagnized in profit or loss i such gain or loss would have otherwise
beea racognized i proflt or Insg gn disposal of that financial asset. 4 cumulative gain or loss that
had been racognized in other comprehensive income is allocated betwean the part that continues
to be recugnized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basls of the relative fair values
aof those parts,

Eoreign exchange galns and losses on financial assets

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a fareign currency is determined in that foraign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For foreign currency
denarminated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FYTPL, the exchange differences
are recagnized in peofit or loss,

Changes in the carrving ameount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCT celating to
changes in foreign currency rates are recognized in ather comprehensive income,

For the murposes of recognising forgign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCT debt instruments are
treated as financizl assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the
amortized cost are recognized in profit of loss and other changes in the falf value of FYTOCT
financial agsats are recognized in other comprehensive income.




ial tiabiliti equity in m:

Classificatj eguj

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are dassified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangermeants and the definitlons of
a financial izbility and an equity Instrument.

Equity instruments
An equlty instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of s liabilitles. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recogrized gt
the proceeds received, net of dirert issue rosts. Repurchase of the Company's own enuity
instruments is recegnized and deducted directly in equity. No gain er loss is recognizad in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments,

Ei ial liabiliti
A finangial liability is any liability that is:
{a) a contractual obligation :
{i) to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
{ii} to exchange financial assets or finandal liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the Company: o
{b] a contract that will or may be settled in the Company's own equity Instruments and is:
{i} a non-derivative for which the Company is or may be obliged to deliver & variable
number of the Company’s cun aguity instruments; or
{ii} a derivative that wiil or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of ¢ash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity
instruments, For this purpose, rigits, options or warrants to acquire a fived number of
the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency are equlty
instruments if the Company offers the rights, options or warrants pro rata to all of its
existing owners of the same class of its own non-derivative equity instruments. Apart
from the aforesaidd, the equity conversion option embedded in a corwertlble bond
derominated in foreign ourrency to acquire a fixed number of the Company's own equity
instruments is an equlty instrument if the exercise price is fixed in any currency.
alt financial liabilities are subseguently measurad at amortised cost using the effective Interest
methed or at FYTPL.
However, financial lizbillties that arlse when a transfer of a flnandal asset does nat qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing Involvement approach applles, financial guarantes
ontracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at
below-marker interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set
ot befow,
Financial ligbilities are classifizd a5 at FYTPL when the fnancial liabillty is either contingent
consideration recogrized by the Company as an acguirer in 2 business combination to which Ind
A% 103 applies or is held for trading or it i5 designated as at FYTPL.
A fimancial liability 1s classified as held for trading if:
a} it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing It in the near term; ar
b} on initial recognition it is part of & portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
€} it is & derivative that is not designated and effactive as a hedging instrument,

-




A financial liability other than a financial lizbility held for t'ading or contingent consideration
recognized by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103
applies, may be designated as at FYTPL upon initial reconmition if:

a) such designation ehminates or slgnificantly reduces a measurement o recognltion
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

b} the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its parformance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the
Company's decumented risk management or investment strateqy, and information about the
Company is provided nternally on that basts; ar

c} it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109
permits the dntire combined contract o be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS
108,

Financlal lakilites st FYTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arlsing on re-
measurement recognized in profit or loss, The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss
fncorporates any interest paid on the financial liabifity ard is included in the "Other income’ /
'Other expenses’ line item as appropriate, '

Hewewver, for fnancial liabilities not held-for-trading that are designated as at FYTPL, the amount
of change In the fair value of the financlal llabllity that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
acgaunting mismatch in profit ar loss, in which case these effects of changes in oredit risk are
recognized in profit or less. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always
recoghized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financlal llabllity's credit risk
that are recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings
and are not subsequently redassifisd to profit or loss,

Gains or losses on fnancial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company
that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in profit
ar loss,

Finangial liahilities subsequently measured at amortised cosk

Finangial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are notdesignated as at FYTPL are measured
&b amortised cost at the end of subsequent sccounting periods, The carrying armounts of financial
fiabilitias that are subsequently meastred at amortised cost are determined basad on the
effective interast method, Interest expense that is not capltalized as part of costs of an asset is
included under "Finance costs’.

Einancial quarantee contracts

A financigl quarantce contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make spacified payments o
reimbursa the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due In soeordance with the terms of a debt instrurment.

Financial guarantes contracts issued by the Company are inltlally measured &t their fair values
and, if not designated as at FYTRL, are subsequently measurad at the higher of:

- the amgunt of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requiremerits of Ind AS
10%; and

- the amount initally recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of Income
recagnized in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18,
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financial liabiiities

For fimancial lisbities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measurad at amortised
cost at the end of each reparting perlod, the Foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the arortised cost of the instruments and are recogmized In "Dther incame”,

The fair value of financial liabilities dencminated in a foreign currency is determined in that
forgign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabililes that are measured as at FYTPL, the fareign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognized in profit or lass, '

De nition of financial abiliti
The Company derecognizes financial fishilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
arg discharged, cancelled or have expired. An ewchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantiafly different terms is accounted for as an estinguishment of the
arigingl financial liabdity ard the recognition of a new financial liability. Similary, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing finandal liahility {whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the debror} is accounted far a5 an extinguishiment of the original finandal
liability and the recognition of a rnew finandal liability. The difference between the Grrying
amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in, profit or loss.

Cash flow statements:
Cash cornprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short t2rm

balances (with an original maturity of three menths or less from the date of acqulsitlon}, highly
liguicd investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
o Inslgnificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect methed, whereby profit
before extra-ordinary items and &x is adjusted for the effects of ransactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accrials of past or future cash receipts or payments. The ¢ash flow from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated bassd on the
available information.

. Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is compuied by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the vear, Diluted samings per share is computed by
dividing the profit / (loss) atier tax as adjusted For dividend, interest and other charges to
expanse or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the welghted average
number of equity shares considered for. deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
patential equity shiares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if thelr comversion
to equity shares would decrease the net peofit per share from continuing ordinary cperations.
Potential difutive equity shares are deemed to be convarted as aft the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for
the proceeds recelvable had the shares been actually issued at falr value (le. average market
value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potentizl equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Insurance Claims;
Insurange claims are accounted for on the basis of clams admitted f expected bo be admitted art
to the extent that the amouat recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable o expect

ultimate collection. .
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Goods and Service Tax inout credit;
Goods and Service tax input credit is accounted for In the books in the period in which the

underlying service received |5 accounted and when there is reasonable certainty in availing f
utilizing the credits.

Dperating cycle:
Based on the nature of services / activities of the Compary and the normal time between

acquisition of assets and their realization in cash ar cash equivalents, the Company has
determined ith aperating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
llabliities as current and non-current.

Firsi-time allopticn — manda ions and optional exemptions:
Overall prinéi

Tre Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2016 {the
fransition daté) by recognizing all assets and liabilites whose recognition is required by Ind A%,
Aot reconnizing items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying
iems from previous GRAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in
measurement of recognized assets and [iabiliies. However, this principle is subject to the certain
mandatory exception and certain optional exemytions availed by the Company as detailed below.

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intanglble assets

The Company has elected the exemption of previous GAAP carrying value for its Praperty, Plant
and Equipmant and Intangible Assets recognized as of April 1, 2016 {transition date) as deemed

| /
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27. Contingent Liabllitles

[ In respect of an alleged discrepancy in the records of 1,850MT of Spange Iron fines &
lumps , Re.5.16 Lakhs of penalty and Rs.3.45 lakhs of fine had been lmposed by the
concerned authority, The Company's appeal agginst these levies is pending for dispozal
bafore CESTAT, CHEMNAL

. iy During the Finandal year 2015-16, an Order in Letter Nos. 5/2016,6/20156 & 7/2016
dated 10.02 2016 passed by the Joint Commissioner of Central Bxclse, Chennai- 1
Commissionerate in the matter of nan — payment of duty on clearance of by-product
Dolochar, stating that an amount of RS, 35,52,302/- is Payable for the period from
January 2009 to May 2015 and also imposed a penalty of Rs. 15,883,972/ as Per Rule 25
of the Central Excise Rules, 2002,

In respect of Levy of Exase duty of Rs.35,52,302/- and Rs.15,89,972/- of panalty, the
Company’s appeal before CESTAT is pending far disposal.

{illy During the Financial Year 2017-18, an Order in Letter Mo: 61/2017 passed by the
Aszistant Commissioner of Central Excise in the matter of nan-payment of duty on
clearance of by-product Dolochar, stating that an amount of Rs, 15,99,41%/- is payable
for the pericd from June 2015 to February 2017 and alse imposed a penalty of
Rs.1,59,942/- a5 per Rule 25 of the Ceniral Excise Rutes,2002.

5

For which the company filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Central Tax (Appeals
= 11} on 23.03.2018 Which was rejected by the Assistant Commissioner on the ground
that zale of Dolochar will atract Excise Duty, The company is in the prooass of filing an
appeal before the CESTAT {Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal)

HMNO Particulars Amount Forum whete the | Relevant financial year
(Rs.in disputs s |/ Period,
Lakhs} Pending

(i) Penalty & Fine for Non 8.61 | CESTAT Chenmai 2014-15

maintenance  of  propec
recirds woder Central Excise
-RG 234,

{ii} Excise Duty on Dalochar : 1359 CESTAT.Chennai ! JAN 2009 ko MAR 2012

{1ii} Penalty for Non Payment of 1339 CESTAT.Chennai | JAN 2009 to MAR 2012
Excise Duty on Dolochiar °

{iv} Excise Dury on Dolochar 384 CESTAT Chennai | JAN 2013 to MAY 2013

g




1) Penalty for Non Payroent of .40 CESTAT.Chennai | JAN 203 1o MAY 2013,
Excise Duty on Dolachar

{vi} Iixcise Duty on Dolochar 6,92 CESTAT,Chennai ! JUNE 2013 to MAY
2014

(vif) | Penalfy for Non Pavment of 070 CESTAT, Chennai | JUNE 2013 o MAY

Excise Dhuty on Delochar . 2014,
{viii) | Excise Duty on Dolochar 1215 CESTAT-Chennai | JUNE 2014 to MAY
20185,

{ix) Penalty for Non Payment of 1.20 CESTAT,Chennat [ JIUNE 204 1 MAY
Excise Duty on Dolochat 205,

(1] Excise Duty on Dolochar 399 CESTAT.Chennai | [UNE 2015 to FEB 2017,

(=i} Penalty for Mon Payment of 1.3 CESTAT,Chennai ' JUNE 2015 to FEB 2017 |
Excise [huty on Dolochar, i

(i} ' ' ) (Rupees)
Details | amise 2017-18
Claims against the Company not acknowledged ¢ i
a5 Debt | 68,55,065 ss,;;,ht_)as

28. Income Tax;

Incoma kax assessments for and up to the Assessment vear 2016-17 have been complated. There are
na kax arresrs and no proceedings are pending against the campany in respect of thesa years,

29. Auditor’s Remuneratien:
B {In Rupees)
Details 2018-19 2017-18
Fror Statutory Audit 75,000 75,000

For Tax & Othar matters 48,500 1,12,500




30, Dye to Micro, Smalt and Mdium Enterprises;

The Company has not received any information from the Suppliers as regards their status under the
Micro, Small and Medium Esterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and hence disclosure
reguirements in this regard as per schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, could not be provided,
However, no intevast has been accrued / paid during the year to any of the suppliers.

31.CON S, SALE OF FINISHED K_AND
CLOSING K:
[ {A) MATERIAL CONSUMPTION ]
: PARTICULARS 2028-19 2017-18
N {Rs} {Rs}
RAW MATERIALS:
Iron Cire - 16,29,66,220
ol _ - 13,95,19,539
Dolamite : - 13,54 064
- 30,38,39,832

{B} FINISHED GOODS

PARTICULARS 2018-1% 2017-18
{Rs} (Rs}

Sales .
Sponge lran - Fines & Lumps - 24,69,26,884
Raw Material - 50,55,034
Scrap 3,99,96,851 62,67,384

Conversion Charges 15,46,05,105 5.19,38,2480

31,01,88,182 31,01,88,182
- Opening Stock
) Sponge iron 4,24 22 564 3,64,65,660
! Scrap * 1,465,035 5,29,047

Closing Stock

Sponge iron 3,588,51,850 4,24,22 564

Sorap 1,46,035 146,034

Stock-In-trade 1,36,549 | -




32, Yalye of raw materials consumed

{Rs, In [akhs}

Details 201, 3-1; o 2017-18
N Walus Percen'lzg:tla Value Percantage
a) Indhgerious - - 2860,43 94.14
b) Imported* . - 177.97 5.86
TOTAL - - 3,038.40 100%
hote:

a. The consumption value includes freight and other charges incurred in connection with the purchase

of raw material,

33. Disclosure in respect of Related parties pursuant to Accounting Standard 18-

a) Holding Company ¢ M/s. Tulsyan MEC Ltd (Extent of Halding: 100%}

Transaction with related parties:

During the year the following transactions were amisd out with the aforesaid parties in the ordinary

course of business;

{Amount in lakhs)

Transaction i Related Party 2018-19 017-18
Sales 1 Tulsyan NEC Lid 40174 2460.27 §
Purchases [Raw Materials, i i
Stores, Freiaht & Power) Tulsyan NEC Lud £11.51 92.02
Sanvices Rendered Tulsyan MEC Ltd 1.546.05 51538
Ealan s at year end :
Unsecurad Loan Tulsyan MEC Ltd 200.39 200.39
Balance Payable ' Tulsyan NEC Ltd 764.57 2292.36




34, Foreign Exchange Earnings: Export Sales : Rs, NIL {Previous year: Rs. NIL)

35. CIF Valug of Imports:

Raw Materials ¢ Rs.Nil{Previous Year: Rs.426.9) lakhs)
Components & Spares Nil {Pravious Year: Nif)

36, Sponge Iron manufacture is the only reportable primary business segment. The Company caters
anly domestic market and hence there are no reportable geographic segments, Therefore, segment
information as required by the AS-17 of ICAL is not applicable.

37:The Company has initiated legal action for recovery of the amount of Rs. 21,66,385/- paid to M/s.
Yeses Infrastructure Put. Lid., Hyderabad, to whom a Fabrication work contract had been awarded
and the said contractor failed to complete the work. At the same time, this Contractor has made a
epunter ¢laim against the Company for a sum of Rs, 68,55,065/- and the same 15 rejected by the
Company.

The management reasonably expects that, there will not be ary Liability, with respect to the claim
made agalnst the cormpany, and hence no provision fs considered necessary.

38, Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified, wherever necessary to Conform to the
Current year's presentation,

39, Figures shown in the account have been raunded off to the nearest rupes,

Far C A Patel & Patel
Chatterad Accountants
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